
NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 

Meeting Date:  July 9, 2012 
 
The Board of Directors of Novato Sanitary District will hold a closed session at 
6:00 p.m. followed by a regular meeting at 6:30 p.m., Monday, July 9, 2012, at the 
District Offices, 500 Davidson Street, Novato. 
 
Materials related to items on this agenda are available for public inspection in the 
District Office, 500 Davidson Street, Novato, during normal business hours. They are 
also available on the District’s website:  www.novatosan.com. 
 

 
AGENDA 

CLOSED SESSION CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING 
LITIGATION: 
 

Existing litigation pursuant to subdivision (a) of Government Code Section 
54956.9: Administrative Civil Liability No. R2-2010-0102  

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

2. AGENDA APPROVAL: 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT (Please observe a three-minute time limit): 
 

This item is to allow anyone present to comment on any subject not on the agenda, 
or to request consideration to place an item on a future agenda.  Individuals will be 
limited to a three-minute presentation.  No action will be taken by the Board at this 
time as a result of any public comments made. 

4. REVIEW OF MINUTES: 
 

a. Consider approval of minutes of the June 25, 2012 meeting. 

5. CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 

The Manager-Engineer has reviewed the following items. To her knowledge, there 
is no opposition to the action. The items can be acted on in one consolidated 
motion as recommended or may be removed from the Consent Calendar and 
separately considered at the request of any person. 
 
a. Review accounts receivable report. 
b. Approve regular disbursements. 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – 2012-13 SEWER SERVICE CHARGE REPORT: 
 

a. Open hearing. 

 



AGENDA/Board of Directors 
Meeting Date:  July 9, 2012 
 

2 

b. Consider protests regarding sewer service charge report. 
c. Close hearing. 

7. RESOLUTION CONFIRMING REPORT ON SEWER SERVICE CHARGES: 
 

a. Consider adoption of resolution confirming sewer service charge report and 
electing to collect on tax rolls. 

8. BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 

a. Review and consider modifying Policy 4060 Committee organization to add 
the New Facilities and Finance Committees. 

b. Consider board member compensation for delegate to the North Bay 
Watershed Association. 

c. Presidential appointment of Committee members for 2012-13. 

9. CALIFORNIA SPECIAL DISTRICTS ASSOCIATION: 

a. Consider voting for a candidate for Region 3, Seat A. 

10. PUMP STATION REHABILITATION PROJECT 72403: 

a. Consider authorizing contract award for Unit 4 to the lowest, responsive 
bidder, W.R. Forde & Assoc. and authorize Manager-Engineer to execute 
contract. 

11. STAFF REPORTS: 

a. North Bay Watershed Association. 

12. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS: 

13. MANAGER’S ANNOUNCEMENTS: 

14. ADJOURNMENT: 
 
 
Next resolution no. 3046  
 
Next regular meeting date:  Monday, July 23, 2012, 6:30 PM at the Novato Sanitary 
District office, 500 Davidson Street, Novato, CA 
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special 
assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact the District at (415) 892-
1694 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting.  Notification prior to the meeting will 
enable the District to make reasonable accommodation to help ensure 
accessibility to this meeting. 



 

June 25, 2012 
  
A regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Novato Sanitary District was held at 6:30 
p.m., Monday, June 25, 2012, at the District Office, 500 Davidson Street, Novato. 
 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:  President William C. Long, Members Michael Di Giorgio, 
Jean Mariani, Jerry Peters, and Dennis Welsh. 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Manager-Engineer-Secretary Beverly B. James, Deputy Manager-
Engineer Sandeep Karkal, District Counsel Kent Alm, Finance Officer Laura Creamer, and 
Administrative Secretary Julie Swoboda. 
 
ALSO PRESENT:   Bob Guinan, Novato resident 
 Joe Carlomagno, Novato resident 
 Dasse de Iongh, NSD employee, Novato resident 
 John Bailey, Project Manager, Veolia Water 
 Brant Miller, Novato resident 
 Steve McCaffrey, Novato Disposal Service 
 Dan Ryan, Veolia Water North America 
 John O’Hare, Veolia Water North America 
  
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
 
AGENDA APPROVAL:  President Long approved the agenda as written. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  None. 
 
REVIEW OF MINUTES: 
 
Consider approval of minutes of the June 11, 2012 meeting.   
 
Member Mariani noted that her comments on page 4, paragraph 6 were inaccurate.  She 
requested the minutes be revised to read:  “Member Mariani suggested that the District 
request bids for an “as needed” list of consultants to be used to bid on projects 
throughout the year.” 
 
On motion of Member Di Giorgio, seconded by Member Peters, and carried unanimously, 
the minutes of the June 11, 2012 Board meeting were approved as amended. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 
On motion of Member Di Giorgio, seconded by Member Peters and carried unanimously, 
the following Consent Calendar item was approved: 
 

a. Approval of regular disbursements in the amount of $154,277.42, capital project 
disbursements in the amount of $731,332.11, and payroll and payroll-related 
disbursements in the amount of $232,038.50. 



June 25, 2012 
Page 2 

 
SEWER SERVICE CHARGES: 
 
- Consider adoption of Ordinance No. 116 setting the sewer service charges for fiscal years 
2012-13 through 2015-16:  The Manager gave a summary of the Public Hearing that was 
held at the June 11th Board meeting and noted that no verbal protests were received.  She 
stated that the District had received 25 written protests. 
 
The Manager presented the Board and audience with a revised copy of Ordinance 116, 
noting that District Counsel had included a paragraph which outlined the progression of this 
Ordinance adoption (page 1, 5th Whereas).  The Manager stated that adoption of Ordinance 
No. 116 approves and sets forth the specific sewer service charge rates for fiscal years 
2012-13, 2013-14, 2014-15 and 2015-16. 
 
District Counsel Kent Alm discussed Ordinance No. 116, Table 2 - Non-Residential Rates 
which illustrates the background information necessary to establish the non-residential 
sewer service rates.  He requested that Table 2 - Non-Residential Rates be included as part 
of the official record of the June 25, 2012 Board meeting minutes.   
 
Member Mariani requested that Board action for Ordinance No. 116 be suspended until 
after discussion of agenda item No. 9a:  Consider adoption of Preliminary Budget for fiscal 
year 2012-13. 
 
President Long moved agenda item No. 9a. for immediate discussion. 
 
BUDGET: 
 
- Consider adoption of Preliminary Budget for fiscal year 2012-13.  The Manager stated that 
revisions were made to the Preliminary Budget and she presented the Board and audience 
with corrections for the following pages of the Budget:  page 1:  Summary of Working 
Capital and Capital Improvement Reserve Fund Balances; page 2:  2012-14 Preliminary 
Operating Budget Revenue Summary; and page 20:  Capital Improvement Budget-Revenue 
Summary.  Board discussion followed.   
 
Member Mariani noted that the required debt coverage ratio is 1.2% but currently the 
District’s debt coverage ratio is at 1.4%.  She stated that she felt the District’s reserves were 
high and that the District could reduce their reserves and still be adequately funded. 
 
The Board discussed the option of dropping the initial sewer service charge rate increase to 
6% instead of the proposed increase of 6.7% which would lower the District’s reserves to 
1.2%.  The Manager stated that the 0.7% rate decrease would equate to a sewer service 
charge reduction of approximately $3 per year per homeowner.   
 
On motion of Member Di Giorgio, seconded by Member Peters and carried with the 
following vote, the Board approved the Preliminary Budget for Fiscal Years 2012-14:  Ayes:  
Di Giorgio, Long, Peters, Welsh.  Noes:  Mariani. 
 



June 25, 2012 
Page 3 

President Long stated that the Board would now return to Agenda Item 6a. 
 
SEWER SERVICE CHARGES: 
 
- Consider adoption of Ordinance No. 116 setting the sewer service charges for fiscal years 
2012-13 through 2015-16:  District Counsel Kent Alm reviewed the proposed maximum rate 
increases as outlined in Ordinance No. 116 which are as follows:  6.7% in 2012-13, 3.8% in 
2013-14, 3.7% in 2014-15, and 3.6% in 2015-16. 
 
On motion of Member Di Giorgio, seconded by Member Peters and carried with the 
following vote, the Board approved the proposed sewer service charge increase and 
adopted Ordinance No. 116:  AN ORDINANCE OF THE NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
ESTABLISHING SEWER SERVICE CHARGES FOR FISCAL YEARS 2012-13, 2013-14, 
2014-15, 2015-16.  Ayes:  Di Giorgio, Long, Peters, Welsh.  Noes:  Mariani. 
 
SOLID WASTE: 
 
- Report on route reorganization.  The Manager introduced Steve McCaffrey, Director of 
Governmental Affairs, Novato Disposal.  Mr. McCaffrey stated that Novato Disposal had 
recently streamlined their route collections to Novato customers and noted that this change 
has minimized the time that collection trucks are on the Novato streets.  He discussed the 
economic, safety and environmental benefits of the route changes.  
 
WASTEWATER OPERATIONS: 
 
- Wastewater Operations Committee report.  The Manager reviewed the May 2012 
Operations Report for the wastewater treatment, collection and reclamation facilities.  She 
gave an update on the landscaping at the Lea Drive neighborhood area.  The Manager 
stated that she has received a report from Mr. Scofield, Exponent, Inc., and that the report 
will be placed on the District website.  She stated that odor consultant Mr. James Joyce 
visited the District to evaluate the biofilter odor beds.  She noted that the District has not yet 
been provided with the results of the testing and stated that the report will be posted on the 
District website when it is available. 
 
A resident questioned what the District intended to do about the aeration basin odors and 
stated he felt the basins are the primary source of odors.  The Manager stated that the 
District is still proceeding with the Mr. Joyce’s proposed plans.  She stated that no 
secondary action will be taken until Mr. Joyce’s initial recommendations have been 
completed.   
 
- Progress report on implementation of an Environmental Management System at the 
Novato Wastewater Treatment Facility.  The Manager introduced Dan Ryan, EVP, Veolia 
Water.  Mr. Ryan gave a PowerPoint presentation of Veolia’s Management Systems and 
Health & Safety program.  He stated that Veolia’s integrated environmental management 
system contains all elements within the ISO 14001 certification, except the actual 
certification process.  The Board discussed the details of the program with Mr. Ryan. 
 



June 25, 2012 
Page 4 

- Consider transferring electricity accounts from PG&E to Marin Clean Energy.  The 
Manager stated that the District was investigating transferring electrical services from PG&E 
to Marin Clean Energy.  She stated that the District was not in a position to make the 
transfer at this time because a requested rate analysis from both PG&E and Marin Clean 
Energy has not been received.  She requested the Board delay the decision to change 
providers until the analyses are completed. 
 
On motion of Member Di Giorgio, seconded by Member Welsh and carried unanimously, 
the Board directed staff to remain with the current electrical provider, PG&E, until an 
accurate cost comparison with Marin Clean Energy can be completed.  
 
BUDGET: 
 
- Staff report on property taxes.  The Manager outlined the County of Marin’s methodology 
for property tax revenue calculations and distributions.   
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 
 
- Election of officers for 2012-13.   
 
Member Peters nominated Member Di Giorgio as President.  Vote as follows:   
Ayes: Di Giorgio, Long, Peters.  Abstain:  Welsh, Mariani. 
 
Member Welsh nominated Member Mariani as President.  Vote as follows:   
Ayes:  Welsh.  Abstain:  Di Giorgio, Long, Mariani, Peters. 
 
Member Di Giorgio nominated Member Mariani as President Pro-tem. Vote: all ayes. 
 
Appointment of Secretary/Treasurer and Secretary/Treasurer Pro-tem for 2012-13. 
 
Member Peters nominated Manager Beverly James as Secretary/Treasurer and 
Administrative Secretary Julie Swoboda as Secretary/Treasurer Pro-tem. Vote: all ayes. 
 
DESIGNATE AND AUTHORIZE BOARD AND STAFF MEMBERS TO SIGN DISTRICT 
CHECKS: 
 
The Manager stated that the Board typically authorizes District check signers at the same 
meeting in which officers are elected.  She requested that Deputy Manager-Engineer 
Sandeep Karkal become an authorized check signer in place of Administrative Services 
Manager June Penn Brown.   
 
Member Di Giorgio requested Member Mariani be added as an authorized check signer. 
   
 
 
 



June 25, 2012 
Page 5 

On motion of Member Mariani, seconded by Member Peters and carried unanimously, the 
Board authorized the following individuals as District check signers: 
 Manager-Engineer Beverly B. James 

Deputy Manager-Engineer Sandeep Karkal 
 Board Member Michael Di Giorgio 
 Board Member Jean Mariani 
 Board Member Dennis Welsh 
 
RECYCLED WATER PROJECT: 
 
- New Facilities Committee report on joint Recycled Water Subcommittee meeting.  The 
Manager stated that the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District and the Novato Sanitary 
District projects are scheduled to be completed and delivering recycled water to some 
customers by the grant deadline of September 30, 2012.  She noted that dedication 
ceremonies at each of the treatment facilities will be coordinated with North Marin Water 
District.  The Manager discussed the project’s funding provisions based on the North Bay 
Water Reuse Authority Memorandum of Understanding. 
 
- Consider approval of a proposal from Veolia Water to provide systemization and operation 
and maintenance services for 2012.  The Manager stated that the Adhoc Wastewater 
Treatment Plant Services Agreement Update Committee met on June 14th to review a 
proposal from Veolia Water to provide systemization, operations and maintenance, and 
annual shutdown of the new Novato Recycled Water Facility.  She stated that Veolia Water 
has submitted a proposal for Board approval for the above services on a time and materials 
basis for an amount not to exceed $37,620.  The Manager confirmed that the costs would 
be tracked and billed separately from the current Veolia treatment plant operation contract.  
She explained that North Marin Water would pay all of the District’s operational costs of the 
recycled water facility and that the capital costs would be the District’s responsibility. 
 
 On motion of Member Peters, seconded by Member Mariani and passed unanimously, the 
Board approved a proposal from Veolia Water for time and materials in an amount not to 
exceed $37,620 to provide systemization and operation and maintenance services for the 
Novato Recycled Water Facility for 2012. 
 
PUMP STATION REHABILITATION PROJECT 72403:  
 
- Consider authorizing agreement for water main relocation.   The Deputy Manager-
Engineer stated that in order to complete Pump Station Rehabilitation Project Unit 4, a 12-
inch North Marin Water District water main must be relocated.  The Deputy Manager-
Engineer stated that the cost of relocation is estimated at $51,687.  He requested the Board 
authorize staff to execute the agreement to allow for the relocation construction. 
 
On motion of Member Peters, seconded by Member Di Giorgio and carried unanimously, 
the Board authorized the Manager-Engineer to execute an Agreement with North Marin 
Water District (NMWD) in the amount of $51,687 for NMWD to relocate a 12-inch water 
main to enable District construction of Pump Station Rehabilitation Project Unit 4. 
 



June 25, 2012 
Page 6 

 
BOARD MEMBER REPORTS: 
 
Member Mariani discussed a recent New York Times article that she would like included in 
the Board meeting packet on July 9th.  The article discussed public/private partnerships. 
 
Member Peters commented that he was recently walking in the Lea Drive neighborhood 
and noted that the vegetation on District property at Lea Dr. was much improved.  He also 
noted that there was little noise from the treatment facility. 
 
President Long thanked the Board members for their support during his term as Board 
President. 
 
Members of the Board and staff thanked President Long for his years of dedicated service 
as Board President. 
 
MANAGER’S ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
 
- The District office will be closed in observance of the July 4th Holiday. 
 
- The North Bay Watershed Association will hold a meeting at the Marin Community 

Foundation on July 6th at 9:30 a.m. 
 
ADJOURNMENT:  There being no further business to come before the Board, President 
Long adjourned the meeting at 9:02 p.m.  
 
          Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
          Beverly B. James 
          Secretary 
 
Julie Swoboda, Recording 



s:\board reports\2012\july\first half\5.a.1accts. rec. aging summary report.doc 

NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
TITLE:   Accounts Receivable Aging 
Summary 

MEETING DATE:  July 9, 2012 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO.: 5.a. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Information Only 

SUMMARY AND DISCUSSION:   
 
The attached Accounts Receivable Summary shows the following receivables: 
 
1 – 45 days - $622,255.53:   Current.   
 
46 - 90 days - $0.00:    No delinquent accounts for this time period.   
 
91 - 120 days - $1,523.72:  This is for septic tank hauling fees for one hauler.  Staff will make 
enquiries regarding the delinquent account.      
 
>120 days - $7,054.23:  $6,584.33 is for septic tank hauling fees for one hauler who is no longer 
permitted to use District facilities until the debt is clear.  This hauler reduced the original debt by 
$2,000 and has promised to pay the remaining balance in full the week of July 9, 2012.       
 
$431.40 is for pass-through Used Oil and Beverage Grant fees owed by the City of Novato to the 
District.  Last month, the outstanding balance was $30,071.40.  However, the City has now remitted all 
but $431.40 to the District.    
 
Summary:   Receivables over 90 days old amount to $8,577.95.  This represents 0.096% of the 
District’s total budgeted operating revenue of $8,954,956.00 for fiscal year 2011/12.       
 
 
 

ALTERNATIVES:   N/A – Information only. 

BUDGET INFORMATION:   N/A 

DEPT.MGR.: MANAGER: 

 



 11:17 AM
 07/06/12

 Novato Sanitary District
 A/R Aging Summary

 As of July 6, 2012

Name Description Current 46 - 90 91 - 120 > 120 TOTAL

Bay Area Clean Water Agencies Prop. 84 Grant Funds - Recycled Water Project 308,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 308,500.00
City of Novato - Used Oil Used Oil/Beverage Grants 0.00 0.00 0.00 431.40 431.40
Fireman's Fund Non-Domestic Discharger Permit 126.93 0.00 0.00 0.00 126.93
Joes Farmers Septic Septic Tank Hauling 0.00 0.00 0.00 6,584.33 6,584.33
Petaluma Septic Septic Tank Hauling 807.40 0.00 0.00 0.00 807.40
Quality Septic Systems Septic Tank Hauling 4,747.49 0.00 1,523.72 0.00 6,271.21
Roto Rooter Septic Tank Hauling 873.40 0.00 0.00 0.00 873.40
Roy's Sewer Service, Inc. Septic Tank Hauling 1,220.78 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,220.78
Sonoma County Water Agency NBWRA ARRA Grant - Recycled Water Project 292,370.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 292,370.00
United Site Services Septic Tank Hauling 1,597.53 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,597.53
USCG Sewer Service Charges - 1 month 12,012.00 0.00 0.00 38.50 12,050.50

Total: 622,255.53 0.00 1,523.72 7,054.23 630,833.48

 Page 1 of 1



Date Num Name Credit

Jul 9, 12
7/9/2012 54625 Veolia Water North America, ... 161,142.45
7/9/2012 54597 CSRMA- 97,424.64
7/9/2012 54601 Duke's Root Control, Inc 30,000.00
7/9/2012 54612 Marin County Office 8,967.00
7/9/2012 54609 Johnson, Dee 6,595.60
7/9/2012 54593 Caltest Analytical Lab Inc. 5,984.05
7/9/2012 54587 Alliant Insurance Services, Inc 5,387.59
7/9/2012 54606 HACH/American Sigma Inc 4,759.83
7/9/2012 54620 Rauch Communication Cons... 3,575.37
7/9/2012 54613 Meyers, Nave, Riback, Silver ... 3,525.85
7/9/2012 54619 Preferred Benefit 3,367.60
7/9/2012 54599 Dearborn National 2,720.88
7/9/2012 54614 North Marin Water District 2,249.22
7/9/2012 54624 U.S. Bank Card (2)(June) 1,945.72
7/9/2012 54595 Cintas Corporation 1,287.78
7/9/2012 54596 Comet Building Maintenance,... 1,242.50
7/9/2012 54628 Willis Professional Land Surv... 1,146.25
7/9/2012 54627 WaterSavers Irrigation Inc. 1,026.00
7/9/2012 54607 IEDA, INC 1,020.00
7/9/2012 54594 CDW Government, Inc. 637.88
7/9/2012 54626 Vision Service Plan 545.24
7/9/2012 54608 Irvine Consulting Services Inc. 495.00
7/9/2012 54591 Bartle Wells Assoc, Inc 450.00
7/9/2012 54616 Oratech Controls, Inc. 448.93
7/9/2012 54602 Eaton Corporation 282.10
7/9/2012 54603 EOA, Inc. 276.56
7/9/2012 54598 Datco Billing Inc. 273.00
7/9/2012 54588 American Sentry Systems, Inc. 270.00
7/9/2012 54611 Levy, Larry 250.00
7/9/2012 54592 BoundTree Medical, LLC 247.81
7/9/2012 54621 Ricoh USA, Inc. 216.16
7/9/2012 54618 Pini Hardware 215.56
7/9/2012 54610 Leonardi Automotive & Electr... 207.65
7/9/2012 54605 Fisher-Scientific 204.56
7/9/2012 54589 Aquatic Biosystems Inc. 173.00
7/9/2012 54600 Don Johnsons Pool Service 130.18
7/9/2012 54617 Orkin Pest Control, Inc. 116.00
7/9/2012 54590 Barnett Medical LLC 90.00
7/9/2012 54622 T-Mobile 23.01
7/9/2012 54615 Novato Car Wash 21.98
7/9/2012 54623 U.S. Bank Card (1)(Bev) 8.00
7/9/2012 54604 Federal Express 6.52

Jul 9, 12 348,957.47

Novato Sanitary District
Operating Check Register

July 9, 2012

Page 1



 07/06/12  Novato Sanitary District
 Operations Check Register Detail

July 9, 2012

Account Debit

Alliant Insurance Services, Inc
66070 · Insurance 5,387.59

Total Alliant Insurance Services, Inc 5,387.59

American Sentry Systems, Inc.
66150 · Repairs & Maintenance 270.00

Total American Sentry Systems, Inc. 270.00

Aquatic Biosystems Inc.
64100 · Operating Supplies 173.00

Total Aquatic Biosystems Inc. 173.00

Barnett Medical LLC
64170 · Pollution Prevention/Public Ed 90.00

Total Barnett Medical LLC 90.00

Bartle Wells Assoc, Inc
66123 · O/S Contractual 450.00

Total Bartle Wells Assoc, Inc 450.00

BoundTree Medical, LLC
64170 · Pollution Prevention/Public Ed 247.81

Total BoundTree Medical, LLC 247.81

Caltest Analytical Lab Inc.
64160 · Research & Monitoring 5,984.05

Total Caltest Analytical Lab Inc. 5,984.05

CDW Government, Inc.
66124 · IT/Misc Electrical 637.88

Total CDW Government, Inc. 637.88

Cintas Corporation
64100 · Operating Supplies 267.32

66100 · Engineering Supplies 431.83
60100 · Operating Supplies 588.63

Total Cintas Corporation 1,287.78

Comet Building Maintenance, Inc.
66150 · Repairs & Maintenance 1,242.50

Total Comet Building Maintenance, Inc. 1,242.50

CSRMA-
66071 · Insurance Claim Expense 1,117.90

66020 · Employee Benefits 79,204.00
66070 · Insurance 17,102.74

Total CSRMA- 97,424.64

Datco Billing Inc.
66123 · O/S Contractual 273.00

Total Datco Billing Inc. 273.00

Dearborn National
66020 · Employee Benefits 2,720.88

Total Dearborn National 2,720.88

Don Johnsons Pool Service
65100 · Operating Supplies 130.18

Total Don Johnsons Pool Service 130.18

 Page 1 of 4



 07/06/12  Novato Sanitary District
 Operations Check Register Detail

July 9, 2012

Account Debit

Duke's Root Control, Inc
60153 · Outside Services 30,000.00

Total Duke's Root Control, Inc 30,000.00

Eaton Corporation
66124 · IT/Misc Electrical 282.10

Total Eaton Corporation 282.10

EOA, Inc.
64160 · Research & Monitoring 276.56

Total EOA, Inc. 276.56

Federal Express
66090 · Office Expense 6.52

Total Federal Express 6.52

Fisher-Scientific
64100 · Operating Supplies 204.56

Total Fisher-Scientific 204.56

HACH/American Sigma Inc
64091 · Software Maintenance 4,759.83

Total HACH/American Sigma Inc 4,759.83

IEDA, INC
66123 · O/S Contractual 1,020.00

Total IEDA, INC 1,020.00

Irvine Consulting Services Inc.
66124 · IT/Misc Electrical 495.00

Total Irvine Consulting Services Inc. 495.00

Johnson, Dee
67530 · Used Oil Program 310.84
67400 · Consulting Services 6,284.76

Total Johnson, Dee 6,595.60

Leonardi Automotive & Electric, Inc.
60150 · Repairs & Maintenance 207.65

Total Leonardi Automotive & Electric, Inc. 207.65

Levy, Larry
66123 · O/S Contractual 250.00

Total Levy, Larry 250.00

Marin County Office
65201 · Permits & Fees 8,967.00

Total Marin County Office 8,967.00

Meyers, Nave, Riback, Silver & Wilson
66122 · Attorney Fees 3,525.85

Total Meyers, Nave, Riback, Silver & Wilson 3,525.85

North Marin Water District
65192 · Water 24.97

61000-4 · Water/Permits/Telephone 2,073.39
65192 · Water 150.86

Total North Marin Water District 2,249.22

 Page 2 of 4



 07/06/12  Novato Sanitary District
 Operations Check Register Detail

July 9, 2012

Account Debit

Novato Car Wash
66150 · Repairs & Maintenance 21.98

Total Novato Car Wash 21.98

Oratech Controls, Inc.
64150 · Repairs & Maintenance 448.93

Total Oratech Controls, Inc. 448.93

Orkin Pest Control, Inc.
66150 · Repairs & Maintenance 116.00

Total Orkin Pest Control, Inc. 116.00

Pini Hardware
60100 · Operating Supplies 49.80
65100 · Operating Supplies 165.76

Total Pini Hardware 215.56

Preferred Benefit
66020 · Employee Benefits 3,266.24
21074 · Health Insurance Payable 101.36

Total Preferred Benefit 3,367.60

Rauch Communication Consultants. Inc.
66123 · O/S Contractual 1,938.75
67520 · Permanent HHW Facility 1,636.62

Total Rauch Communication Consultants. Inc. 3,575.37

Ricoh USA, Inc.
66090 · Office Expense 216.16

Total Ricoh USA, Inc. 216.16

T-Mobile
65193 · Telephone 23.01

Total T-Mobile 23.01

U.S. Bank Card (1)(Bev)
66170 · Travel, Meetings & Training 8.00

Total U.S. Bank Card (1)(Bev) 8.00

U.S. Bank Card (2)(June)
66124 · IT/Misc Electrical 89.65

66090 · Office Expense 12.99

66070 · Insurance 38.00

66150 · Repairs & Maintenance 112.50
21016 · U.S. Bank Visa 1,692.58

Total U.S. Bank Card (2)(June) 1,945.72

Veolia Water North America, Inc.
61000-1 · Fixed Fee 153,063.95

61000-2 · Insurance & Bonds 4,298.50
64160 · Research & Monitoring 3,780.00

Total Veolia Water North America, Inc. 161,142.45

Vision Service Plan
66020 · Employee Benefits 545.24

Total Vision Service Plan 545.24

 Page 3 of 4



 07/06/12  Novato Sanitary District
 Operations Check Register Detail

July 9, 2012

Account Debit

WaterSavers Irrigation Inc.
63150 · Repairs & Maintenance 1,026.00

Total WaterSavers Irrigation Inc. 1,026.00

Willis Professional Land Surveying
66123 · O/S Contractual 1,146.25

Total Willis Professional Land Surveying 1,146.25

TOTAL 348,957.47

 Page 4 of 4



Date Num Name Credit

Jul 9, 12
7/9/2012 2343 North Marin Water District Jo... 280,440.50
7/9/2012 2344 Nute Engineering Inc. 19,000.25
7/9/2012 2345 Quest 4,031.64
7/9/2012 2342 Exponent, Inc. 2,550.00
7/9/2012 2341 Comet Building Maintenance,... 152.50

Jul 9, 12 306,174.89

Novato Sanitary District
Capital Projects Check Register

July 9, 2012

Page 1



 07/06/12  Novato Sanitary District
 Capital Projects

Check Register Detail - July 9, 2012 

Date Account Amount

Comet Building Maintenance, Inc.
06/21/2012 73002 · WWTP Up - Cont D - Rec- ARRA Fu 152.50

Total Comet Building Maintenance, Inc. 152.50

Exponent, Inc.
06/18/2012 72609 · WWTP Upgrade - Contract B 2,550.00

Total Exponent, Inc. 2,550.00

North Marin Water District Jobsite
07/01/2012 72508 · N. Bay Water Recycling Auth 280,440.50

Total North Marin Water District Jobsite 280,440.50

Nute Engineering Inc.
06/18/2012 72403 · Pump Station Rehabilitation 11,175.25
06/18/2012 72804 · Annual Reclamation Fac Imp 417.00
06/18/2012 72706 · 2008 Collection System Improv 847.00
06/18/2012 72805 · Annual Trtmt Plnt/Pump St Impr 1,009.50
06/18/2012 72706 · 2008 Collection System Improv 5,551.50

Total Nute Engineering Inc. 19,000.25

Quest
06/26/2012 72805 · Annual Trtmt Plnt/Pump St Impr 4,031.64

Total Quest 4,031.64

TOTAL 306,174.89

 Page 1 of 1



Date Num Name Credit

Jul 5, 12
7/5/2012 3146 Di Giorgio, Michael 922.09
7/5/2012 2133 Mariani, Jean M 819.88
7/5/2012 2134 Peters, A. Gerald 777.15
7/5/2012 2132 Long, William C 754.47
7/5/2012 3147 Welsh, Dennis J 486.86

Jul 5, 12 3,760.45

Novato Sanitary District
Board Check Register for June 2012

Page 1



s:\board reports\2012\july\first half\6.sewer service charges.doc 

NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
TITLE: Sewer Service Charge Report MEETING DATE: July 9, 2012 

 
AGENDA ITEMS NO.: 6 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
Public Hearing:  Adoption of resolution confirming sewer service charge report and electing to 
collect on tax rolls 
SUMMARY AND DISCUSSION:   
 
At the public hearing of June 25, 2012, the Board adopted Ordinance No. 116 setting sewer service 
charges for 2012-13 through 2015-16.  The public hearing of July 9, 2012 is for the hearing on the 
sewer service charge report and to adopt a resolution to collect the sewer service charges on the 
Marin County tax rolls.  District staff will have a computerized database at the meeting so that anyone 
may request what their individual sewer service rate will be in the coming year and have an 
opportunity to protest. 
 
The public hearing was noticed twice in the Marin IJ. Following the public hearing the board will 
consider adoption of resolution no. 3046, “A Resolution Prescribing and Providing for the Collection of 
Sewer Service Charges for Novato Sanitary District on the Tax Rolls of the County of Marin for the 
Fiscal Year 2012-13”.  

ALTERNATIVES: NA 

BUDGET INFORMATION: No impact 

 MANAGER: 

 



Agenda Item 7.a 
 RESOLUTION NO.  3046 
 

A RESOLUTION PRESCRIBING AND PROVIDING FOR THE COLLECTION OF SEWER 
SERVICE CHARGES FOR NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT  

ON THE TAX ROLLS OF THE COUNTY OF MARIN 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2012-2013 

 
NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 

 
 
 RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the Novato Sanitary District, Marin County,  

California, that: 
 
 WHEREAS, The District does hereby elect, pursuant to Section 5473 of the Health and 

Safety Code of the State of California, to have the sewer service charges for the fiscal year 2012-

13, established by said District, collected on the tax roll of the County of Marin, State of California, 

in the manner provided pursuant to Sections 5471 through 5473.11 of the Health and Safety Code 

of the State of California. 

 WHEREAS, Monday, the 9th day of July, 2012, at the hour of 6:30 p.m. at the regular 

meeting place of said District, Novato Treatment Plant, 500 Davidson Street, Novato, California, 

was fixed as the time and place for hearing on the sewer service charge report filed with the 

Secretary of this District, pursuant to law, and the Secretary published a notice of said hearing and 

of the filing of said report, once a week for two successive weeks with at least five days intervening 

between the respective publication dates, with the first publication being at least fourteen days 

prior to the date set for said hearing, in the Independent Journal, a newspaper of general 

circulation printed and published in the County. 

 WHEREAS, notice was given of the time therein stated in the manner provided by law as 

appears by the affidavits of publication on file in the office of the Secretary of said District; 

 WHEREAS, said matter came on regularly for hearing at the time fixed; and 

 WHEREAS, all written protests and other written communications, if any, were publicly read 

at said meeting and all persons desiring to be heard were fully heard; 



2 

 NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED, as follows: 

 1. That objections to and protests against said report were not made by the owners of 

a majority of the separate parcels of property described in the report against which charges for the 

services and facilities provided by the District were fixed. 

 2. No objections to, or protests against, said report were made at the hearing. 

 3. That said report be, and it is hereby, adopted in full as revised, changed, reduced or 

modified by the Board, and that said charges shall be collected on the tax roll of the County of 

Marin, in the manner provided by law.  

 4. That the Secretary of this District be, and she is hereby, directed to file a copy of 

said report with the County Controller of Marin County on or before the 10th day of July, 2012, upon 

which shall be endorsed, over her signature, a statement that the report has been finally adopted 

by the Board of Directors of the Novato Sanitary District. 

 5. The County Controller of Marin County shall, upon receipt of said report, enter the 

amounts of the charges against the respective lots or parcels as they appear on the assessment 

roll for the fiscal year 2012-13.    

 6. For all premises connected to the sewer system of the District, the sewer service 

rate per Service Unit for fiscal year 2012-13 shall be FOUR HUNDRED AND NINETY-THREE 

AND 00/100 DOLLARS ($493.00) as established by Novato Sanitary District Ordinance No. 116, 

adopted June 25, 2012.  Said rate shall be subject to modification and change, from time to time, 

as may be required to permit the District to meet State and Federal revenue program guidelines 

and as the total number of Service Units and the budgetary requirements of the District change.   

Service Units shall be calculated for various types of sewer users as described in Novato Sanitary 

District Ordinance No. 116 adopted June 25, 2012.  

  

 Said charges are established pursuant to Article 13B of the Constitution, as amended and 



3 

statutory provisions relating thereto.   

  In addition to the rate per Service Unit, all users whose service charges are collected on 

the Marin County tax roll shall pay an annual collection fee amounting to TWO AND 00/100 

DOLLARS ($2.00) per County Assessor’s parcel billed. 

  

*   *   *   *   *   *   * 

  I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was duly and regularly passed and 

adopted by the Board of Directors of the Novato Sanitary District, Marin County, California, at a 

meeting thereof duly held on the 9th day of July 2012, by the following vote: 

 

 AYES, and in favor thereof, Directors:  

 NOES, Directors:     

 ABSENT, Directors:      
 
 
 
 
 
        ___________________________ 
        President, Novato Sanitary District 
 
 
COUNTERSIGNED: 
 
 
________________________                                                
      Secretary  
 
 
s:\board resolutions\ssc2012-13.res.doc 



S:\Board Reports\2012\July\First Half\8.a.1Committee Organization.doc 

NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
TITLE:   Board of Directors: Committees MEETING DATE:  July 9, 2012 

 
AGENDA ITEM NO.:  

RECOMMENDED ACTION:. Consider revising Board Policy 4060 to add the New Facilities and 
Finance Committees. 
SUMMARY AND DISCUSSION:   
 
The District had three standing committees and five adhoc committees in 2011-12. In addition, there 
were four appointments of delegates to represent the District at regional or statewide organizations. 
The committees and their assigned Board members are shown in the attachment. District Policy 4060 
addresses the formation of Standing Committees and the assignment of delegates. Adhoc 
Committees are single purpose and automatically dissolve once their mission is completed. 
 
Adhoc Committees 
Two of the adhoc committees – Audit and Finance were formed for the 2010-11 Audit and are no 
longer active. However, since there is an annual audit and a Finance Committee could also work on 
the budget format, it is suggested that Audit and Finance functions be combined into one standing 
Finance Committee. 
 
The Marin County Council of Mayors and Councilmembers Adhoc Committee on Pensions and OPEB 
has finished its work and issued the report and is no longer active.  
 
The Adhoc Wastewater Service Agreement Update and 2012 Labor Negotiations Committees are 
single purpose committees still working on their assignments and should continue until they are 
completed. 
 
Standing Committees 
The District names two Standing Committees in Policy 4060: Joint City/District Solid Waste Committee 
and Wastewater Operations Committee. A third standing committee: New Facilities was established in 
July 2010. As noted above it is proposed to establish a fourth standing committee: Finance. 
 
Delegates 
The District names delegates to four organizations as noted in the attached Policy 4060.  

ALTERNATIVES:  NA 

BUDGET INFORMATION:  NA 

DEPT.MGR.: MANAGER: 

 



Agenda Item 8.a. 

 
 

Novato Sanitary District 
 

2011‐12 Committees 
 
 
Ad Hoc Committee Assignments: 
 

Marin County Council of Mayors and Councilmembers Ad Hoc Committee on 
Pensions and OPEB: 

    William C. Long 
    Michael Di Giorgio 
   

Audit Committee: 
    Dennis Welsh 
    Jean Mariani 
 
  Finance Committee:  (appointed 8/8/2011) 
    William C. Long 
    Jean Mariani 
    Dennis Welsh, Alternate 
 
  Wastewater Service Agreement Update Committee:  (appointed 3/26/12) 
    Jean Mariani 
    Jerry Peters 
 
  Labor Negotiations Committee:  (appointed 5/29/12) 
    Michael Di Giorgio 
    Jerry Peters 
 
Standing Committees: 
 

Joint City/District Solid Waste Committee: 
  George C. Quesada  Jerry Peters (appointed 12/12/11) 
  Jean Mariani 
  William C. Long, Alternate 
 
Wastewater Operations Committee: 
  Michael  Di Giorgio 
  Dennis Welsh 
  George C. Quesada, Alternate  Jean Mariani, Alternate (appointed 12/12/11) 
 
New Facilities Committee: 



Agenda Item 8.a. 

  William C. Long 
  Jean Mariani 
  Dennis Welsh, Alternate 

 
Regular Committees: 
 

California Association of Sanitation Agencies: 
  William C. Long, Delegate 
  Michael Di Giorgio, Alternate 
 
California Sanitation Risk Management Authority: 
  Beverly B. James, Delegate 
  William C. Long, Alternate 
 
North Bay Water Reuse Authority: 
  William C. Long, Delegate 
  Michael Di Giorgio, Alternate 
 
North Bay Watershed Association: 
  Michael Di Giorgio, Delegate 
  Beverly B. James, Alternate 
 

 
 



Agenda Item 8.a 

  4060 – 1 
Adopted 5/24/10 

Novato Sanitary District 
POLICY HANDBOOK 

 
 
POLICY TITLE: Committees of the Board of Directors 
POLICY NUMBER: 4060 
 
 
4060.1 The Board President shall appoint such ad hoc committees as may be deemed necessary or advisable 
by himself and/or the Board.  The duties of the ad hoc committees shall be outlined at the time of appointment, 
and the committee shall be considered dissolved when its final report has been made. 
 
4060.2 The following shall be standing committees of the Board:    
 

4060.2.1     Solid Waste Committee 
 
4060.2.2 Wastewater Operations Committee 

 
4060.2.3 New Facilities Committee 

 
4060.2.4 Finance Committee 

 
4060.2.5 In addition, appointments of delegates and alternates will be made to the following 

organizations: 
 

California Association of Sanitation Agencies 
California Sanitation Risk Management Authority 
North Bay Water Reuse Authority 
North Bay Watershed Association 

 
4060.3 The Board President shall appoint and publicly announce the members of the standing committees for 
the ensuing year no later than the Board's second regular meeting in July. 
 
4060.4 The Board's standing committees may be assigned to review District functions, activities, and/or 
operations pertaining to their designated concerns, as specified below.  Said assignment may be made by the 
Board President, a majority vote of the Board, or on their own initiative.  Any recommendations resulting from said 
review should be submitted to the Board via a written or oral report. 
 
 4060.4.1 All meetings of standing committees shall conform to all open meeting laws (e.g., “Brown 

Act”) that pertain to regular meetings of the Board of Directors. 
 



Agenda Item 8.a 

  4060 – 2 
Adopted 5/24/10 

4060.5 The Board's standing Solid Waste Committee shall be concerned with overseeing the implementation of 
local action programs necessary to satisfy the mandates of AB 939, including solid and hazardous waste, 
education and outreach, school programs, permanent household facility activities, etc.   
 
4060.6 The Board's standing Wastewater Operations Committee shall be concerned with reviewing Operation 
and Maintenance Reports and NPDES monitoring reports.  They will receive reports from District staff, facilities 
contract operations, and outside experts on contractor performance and make recommendations to the Board of 
Directors.  
 
4060.7     The Board’s standing New Facilities Committee shall be concerned with the formulation of plans for 
major capital improvements, receiving and commenting on progress reports from staff on major developments, 
including regional projects such as Recycled Water Projects.   
  
4060.8 The Board’s standing Finance Committee shall be concerned with the financial management of the 
District, including recommendations from staff on the preparation of an annual budget, capital financing, major 
expenditures, and annual audit review. 



S:\Board Reports\2012\July\First Half\8.b.1.NBWA Compensation.doc 

NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
TITLE:   Board of Directors: Committees MEETING DATE:  July 9, 2012 

 
AGENDA ITEM NO.:   8.b. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:. Consider authorizing compensation for the Board member delegate to 
the North Bay Watershed Association. 
SUMMARY AND DISCUSSION:   
 
The District appoints a delegate to the North Bay Watershed Association (NBWA) who serves on the 
Board of Directors of the NBWA. Their monthly meetings are publicly noticed and take place either in 
Novato or in Petaluma. Currently, the District does not compensate the delegate for attendance at the 
Board meetings of NBWA. Under the Compensation and Reimbursement Policy effective July 1, 2006 
(attached) Directors are eligible to receive compensation for “Other District -business-related activities 
for which there has been pre-approval by the board.” 
 
Board members currently receive compensation for participation at Board meetings, District Adhoc 
and Standing Committees and attendance at North Bay Water Reuse Authority Board meetings. 

ALTERNATIVES:  NA 

BUDGET INFORMATION:  The potential additional $2,250 cost would be paid from the budget for 
Director’s fees of $45,000. 

DEPT.MGR.: MANAGER: 

 







S:\Board Reports\2012\July\First Half\9.a.1CSDA Election.doc 

NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
TITLE:   California Special District 
Association (CSDA) 

MEETING DATE:  July 9, 2012 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO.: 9.a 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Designate the candidate to receive the District’s vote for Region 3, Seat 
A. 
SUMMARY AND DISCUSSION:   
 
Novato Sanitary District is a member of CSDA Region 3. Each Region has three seats on the CSDA 
Board of Directors. There is currently only one candidate for Seat A:  Vince Ferrante. He is a current 
Commissioner of the Moss Landing Harbor District and is an incumbent on the CSDA Board of 
Directors. He is currently serving as Board Secretary. His resume is attached. 

ALTERNATIVES:  NA 

BUDGET INFORMATION:  NA 

DEPT.MGR.: MANAGER: 

 





S:\Board Reports\2012\July\First Half\10.a.Unit 4 PS Award.doc 

NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
TITLE:   Pump Station Rehabilitation 
Project; Project Unit 4, Bel Marin Keys 9 
& 10 & Hamilton No. 1 Pump Stations; 
Account No. 72403 

MEETING DATE:  July 9, 2012 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO.:  10.a. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Review bids received, authorize contract award to the lowest responsive 
bidder, WR Forde & Associates, and authorize Manager-Engineer to execute contract. 
SUMMARY AND DISCUSSION:   
 
At its May 28, 2012 meeting the District Board made CEQA findings and authorized staff to advertise 
for bids for the project. On June 27, 2012, 4 bids were received as follows:  
  

1. W.R. Forde & Associates:   $1,377,000.00 
2. Pacific Infrastructure:          $1,408,000.00 
3. Maggiora & Ghilotti:            $1,543,210.00  
4. Valentine Corporation:        $1,587,369.00  

 
WR Forde & Associates of Richmond submitted the lowest responsive bid of $1,377,000.00 or 
$27,000.00 (1%) above the engineer’s estimate of probable construction cost of $1,350,000.00 for this 
work, and $31,000.00 (2%) below the next highest bidder.  WR Forde & Associate’s bid documents 
have been reviewed and they are in order.  WR Forde & Associate’s references have also been 
contacted and they have all provided positive feedback.  
  
The Preliminary FY12-13 Budget includes $1,350,000 for the Pump Station Rehabilitation Projects.  
The FY11-12 budget for this Account No. 72403 was $1,500,000 and the estimated FY11-12 
expenditures are approximately $1,150,000, for a balance of approximately $350,000. The Final 
FY12-13 Budget will be adjusted to accommodate the bid amount, engineering services during 
construction, and construction management costs.   
 
Accordingly, it is recommended that the Board award the Unit 4 – Bel Marin Keys 9 & 10 & Hamilton 
No. 1 Pump Stations of the Pump Stations Rehabilitation Project to WR Forde & Associates with a bid 
of $1,377,000.00, and authorize the Manager-Engineer to execute the contract. 

ALTERNATIVES:  None. 

BUDGET INFORMATION:  This work will be funded from the budget for Pump Station Rehabilitation 
Project, Account No. 72403, which has a current FY1-12 preliminary budget of $1,350,000. The final 
FY2012-13 budget will be adjusted as required to accommodate this project. 

DEPT.MGR.: MANAGER: 

 



S:\Board Reports\2012\July\First Half\11.a.NBWA.doc 

NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
TITLE:   Staff Report: North Bay 
Watershed Association 

MEETING DATE:  July 9, 2012 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO.:  11.a. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:.NA 

SUMMARY AND DISCUSSION:   
 
North Bay Watershed Association meeting on July 6, 2012 featured presentations on the Phase II 
Stormwater Permit and the Integrated Regional Water Management Plan (IRWMP). 
 
Phase II Stormwater Permit 
The second draft of the Phase II Stormwater Permit has been released for public comments. 
Comments are due by noon on July 23rd. There will be a public hearing in Sacramento on August 8th. 
The second draft incorporated some of the NBWA comments on the first draft but the current draft but 
significant issues remain with the feasibility and cost of implementing the proposed new requirements. 
The NBWA Board voted to submit a letter commenting on specific elements of the proposed 
regulations, as well as the need to recognize that there is no funding available for implementation on 
the federal, state, or local level. 
 
Bay Area IRWMP 
The process of updating the IRWMP is well underway. The first chapter on governance is available for 
general review. The second chapter on goals and objectives is being drafted. The deadline for 
submitting projects to include in the plan is September 1, 2012. The template for project submittal is 
on the BAIRWMP.org website. There will be a workshop for participating agencies on July 23rd from 4 
to 6 pm at the ABAG offices in Oakland. 
 
The full presentations will be available online at: 
 
http://www.nbwatershed.org/v2/pages/meetings_nbwa.php?meetingID=21#PRES 

ALTERNATIVES:  NA 

BUDGET INFORMATION:  NA 

DEPT.MGR.: MANAGER: 

 








	070912agenda
	AGENDA
	CLOSED SESSION CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION:

	06-25-2012minutes
	5.a.1Accts. Rec. Aging Summary report
	5.a.2July AR Report detail 20121
	070612

	Operating Check Register - July 9, 2012
	Operating Check Detail - July 9, 2012
	Capital Projects Check Register - July 9, 2012
	Capital Projects Check Detail for July 9, 2012
	Board Check Register for June 2012
	6.Sewer Service Charges
	7.a.SSC2012-13.RES
	8.a.1Committee Organization
	8.a.2.2011-12 Committee appointments
	8.a.3.4060.Committees.052410
	POLICY HANDBOOK

	8.b.1.NBWA Compensation
	8.b.2Compensation Policy
	9.a.1CSDA Election
	9.a.2CSDA Candidate Statem
	10.a.Unit 4 PS Award
	11.a.NBWA



